
 
General Business                                         Lower Saucon Township                                         February 21, 2007 
& Developer Meeting                                     Council Minutes                                                            7:00 P.M. 
 
 
I. OPENING 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township  Council 
was called to order on Wednesday, February 21, 2007 at 7:01 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, 
Bethlehem, PA, with Mr. Glenn Kern, Council President, presiding.    

   
 ROLL CALL:  Present – Glenn Kern, President; Thomas Maxfield , Vice President; Priscilla deLeon, 

Sandra Yerger and Ron Horiszny, Council Members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Assistant 
Township Manager, Leslie Huhn; Brien Kocher, Township Engineer; Township  Solicitor, Linc Treadwell;  
Township Planner, Judy Stern Goldstein; and Jr. Council Member, Vanessa Segaline.   

  
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

 
 

Mr. Kern said Council met in Executive session pertaining to a  
litigation issue against the Township by the Seruga’s. 

 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURE 
 
 Mr. Kern said for citizen agenda items – Council operates under Robert’s Rules.  What that means is during 

agenda items, Council will talk amongst themselves and amongst staff and the interested parties.  At the 
conclusion of that, we open it up to the public for public comment.  There is an opportunity for non-agenda 
items at the end of the meeting to discuss whatever your business might be.  We do have a microphone and 
there are microphones up at the table. There is a sign-in sheet in the back of the room.  Please print your 
name and address and email address.  It is very helpful in transcribing the minutes.  For those who want to 
receive emailed agendas, please give your email address to Diane, Leslie, or Jack or call the Township  
office.  Please state your name and address.  If you can’t hear, please let us know.  Mr. Kern asked if 
anything was taken off the agenda this evening?  Mr. Cahalan said no. 

   
III. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS 

  
A. RESOLUTION 33-2007 – HONORING GERRY SZAKMEISTER FOR DEDICATED 

SERVICE TO LOWER SAUCON TOWNSHIP 
 

Mr. Kern said Resolution 33-2007 has been prepared honoring Gerry Szakmeister for her dedicated 
service to Lower Saucon Township. 

 
Mr. Kern said this agenda item is a joy to him, personally.  He said this particular individual he 
happens to love very much.  She’s a wonderful person and a wonderful servant that this Township 
has had.  She is a leader in the township and continues to be.  She leads, not by force, but by 
kindness and gentleness and understanding, which is a rare gift for a leader.  She was President of 
this Council for many years.  When she did not get re-elected, she didn’t give up public service. 
She became a member of the Planning Commission.  It was a given that Gerry would be the 
President just because of those leadership skills and it was a given every year that she would be re-
elected as President.  She’s that kind of a person. 

 
Mr. Kern read the resolution: 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 2 of 21 

RESOLUTION #33-2007 
 

A RESOLUTION HONORING GERRY SZAKMEISTER FOR HER DEDICATED 
SERVICE TO LOWER SAUCON TOWNSHIP 

 
WHEREAS, Gerry Szakmeister has served the residents of Lower Saucon Township in various 
elected and volunteer capacities over the past twenty-three (23) years; and; 
  
WHEREAS, Gerry was appointed to the Township Planning Commission in 1983 and served until 
1988 when she was elected to the Township Council; and     
 
WHEREAS, Gerry served three (3) terms as a Township Council member from 1988 to 1999 and 
from 1996 to 1999 was Council President; and 
 
WHEREAS, after losing her bid for re-election in 1999, Gerry immediately volunteered to serve 
the Township once again as a member of the Planning Commission, where she has devoted the past 
six (6) years; and   
 
WHEREAS, during her twenty-three (23) years of service to the Township, Gerry dedicated 
herself to the goals of managing the Township’s growth and maintaining its rural character.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Council of Lower Saucon Township, Glenn 
Kern, President; Thomas Maxfield, Vice President; Priscilla deLeon, Council Member; Sandra 
Yerger, Council Member; and Ronald Horiszny, Council Member; hereby honors Gerry 
Szakmeister for her long service and dedication to the residents of Lower Saucon Township.    
 
ADOPTED and ENACTED this 21st day of February, 2007. 
 
Everyone in the audience stood up and applauded. 

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval of Resolution 33-2007. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

B. RESOLUTION 34-2007 – POLICE COMMENDATIONS 
 

Mr. Kern said Council would like to publicly recognize the efforts of our Police Officers for the 
fine work they do in the township.  Chief Guy Lesser is here to present the commendations.  
Resolution 34-2007 has been prepared to honor these officers. 

 
Chief Lesser said a number of  years ago, we learned through the creation of the DUI center, which 
covered all of Northampton County, that our officers performed above average and quite 
exemplary.  That performance relative to DUI enforcement extends through their enforcement in all 
areas throughout the year.  Tim Connell came forward.  Chief Lesser said Tim has worked for the 
Police Department (PD) in excess of six years.  He also serves as a criminal identification officer 
on his patrol team in which he receives additional training in specialized equipment that will enable 
him to lift such things as latent fingerprints, process a crime scene and obtain additional evidence 
that may be presented at court at a later time.  Tim is one of our two field training officers, and in 
2006, he actually stopped more than 476 vehicles.  That’s a lot of people to detain and he has the 
personality to do that without creating complaints.  That’s a rare gift and a gift that a number of our 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 3 of 21 

officers have.  Chief Lesser read Tim Connell’s commendation and thanked Tim Connell for a job 
well done.  Audience applauded. 

 
Chief Lesser said Officer Scott Snyder is working this evening and is not here, but he may show up 
later. 

 
Chief Lesser said Officer Keith Bredbenner has been with the PD in excess of five years.  If you’ve 
met Caezar, then you probably are aware that Keith is our Canine Officer.  Under Keith’s direction 
and his commitment, he has expanded, improved and used our canine team much more over the 
past couple of years. He is extremely dedicated to the canine team.   Keith moved his entire family 
to Saucon Valley and they are here this evening.  Chief Lesser read Keith Bredbenner’s 
commendation and thanked Keith Bredbenner for a job well done.  This is Keith’s fifth 
commendation for enforcement.  Audience applauded. 

 
Chief Lesser said Ronald Jones is a team leader for his patrol team.  Back in 1995, Ron Jones, was 
Coordinator of the DUI grant and he helped secure a grant to operate DUI checkpoints and roving 
patrols in LST.  He incorporated it in the Borough of Hellertown and Freemansburg.  It was the 
first such grant for a municipality in Northampton County.  He since then has continued as 
coordinator of our DUI program.  Ron Jones remains one of the top performers in the entire county 
for DUI arrests.  This is Officer Jones twelfth commendation for enforcement.  Chief Lesser read 
Ronald Jones commendation and thanked Ron Jones for a job well done.  Audience applauded.   

 
Chief Lesser said Thomas Barndt also serves as a team leader for his patrol group, and in addition 
to Connell, is our other field training officer.  Tom also is a criminal identification officer.  This is 
Tom’s eleventh enforcement award.  Chief Lesser read Tom Barndt’s commendation and thanked 
Officer Barndt for a job well done.  Audience applauded. 

 
Chief Lesser said Tim Connell is Runner-Up Officer-of-the-Year and Thomas Barndt is Office-of-
the-Year.  Officer Connell was Officer-of-the-Year three years in a row.  Last year he was runner 
up.  Chief Lesser read the commendation for Timothy Connell and thanked him for a job well done.  
Audience applauded.  Chief Lesser said this is Officer Barndt’s tenth Officer-of-the-Year 
recognition.  He read the commendation for Officer Barndt and thanked him for a job well done.  
Audience applauded.   

 
Mr. Kern read the resolution: 

 
 RESOLUTION #34-2007 

POLICE DEPARTMENT COMMENDATIONS 
 

WHEREAS, Officer Thomas H. Barndt has been named Officer-of-the-Year; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Officer Timothy M. Connell has been named Runner-Up Officer-of-the-Year; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Officer Ronald L. Jones has been awarded a Commendation for DUI arrests; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Officer Thomas H. Barndt has been awarded a Commendation for DUI arrests; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Officer Keith O. Bredbenner has been awarded a Commendation for DUI arrests; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, Officer Scott M. Snyder has been awarded a Commendation for DUI arrests; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Officer Timothy M. Connell has been awarded a Commendation for DUI arrests. 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 4 of 21 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Council 
of Lower Saucon Township, Glenn Kern, President; Tom Maxfield, Vice President; Priscilla 
deLeon, Council Member; Ron Horiszny, Council Member; and Sandra Yerger, Council Member, 
does hereby recognize and thank all of these Officers for the fine work exhibited during the year.  It 
is this Council’s opinion that it was a job well done! 
 
ADOPTED and ENACTED this 21st day of February, 2007. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of Resolution 34-2007. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

C. RESOLUTION 37-2007 – HONORING CORPORAL GLENN WILLIAMS UPON HIS 
RETIREMENT 

 
Mr. Kern read the resolution: 

 
RESOLUTION #37-2007 

 
RESOLUTION HONORING GLENN WILLIAMS UPON HIS RETIREMENT 

 
WHEREAS, Glenn Williams began his career as a police officer in Lower Saucon 
Township in 1978; and 
 
WHEREAS, at that time the Township Police Department was comprised of a Chief and 
six (6) officers; and 
 
WHEREAS, Officer Williams performed his assigned duties in an excellent manner and 
exhibited leadership qualities which resulted in him being promoted to the position of 
Corporal in 1993;  and 
 
WHEREAS, as a Department Corporal, Officer Williams was responsible for traffic 
surveys on Township roads, accident investigations, and worked on obtaining law 
enforcement accreditation for the Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, during Corporal William’s 28 years of employment with the township he 
received several commendations for his performance and service and always carried out 
his duties and responsibilities with sound judgment and dedication which reflected on the 
integrity of Lower Saucon Township Police Department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of Lower Saucon Township, Glenn Kern, President; 
Tom Maxfield, Vice President; Priscilla deLeon, Council Member; Sandy Yerger, Council 
Member; and Ron Horiszny, Council Member hereby honors Glenn Williams for his 
dedication and service to the Township and its residents. 
 
ADOPTED and ENACTED this 21st day of February, 2007. 
 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 5 of 21 

Mrs. deLeon said she has known Rocky for a long time and he’s always been outstanding and they 
are going to miss him.  Audience applauded. 

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval of Resolution 37-2007. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

D. PUBLIC HEARING AND CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION – ORDINANCE 2007-08 –    
ACT 4 

 
Mr. Kern said ordinance 2007-08 has been advertised for a public hearing and consideration of 
adoption authorizing a freeze in real property tax increases for those properties acquired under the  
open space lands act as well as properties subject to an easement acquired in accordance with the 
agricultural area security law known as Act 4. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny opened the hearing. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

Mr. Cahalan said this was advertised and it’s a continuation of the efforts that Council has done to 
preserve open space.  What this will do will freeze any future millage increases on any properties 
that the township acquires open space interest in.  This also has to be approved by the school 
district in order for it to be in effect.  We understand through some efforts of the Council members 
that the school district does support this action.  Mrs. Yerger asked if we know where they are as 
far as bringing it before a vote?  Mr. Cahalan said last time they asked us to bring it back to them 
and then they would take action.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield closed the hearing. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to adopt Ordinance 2007-08, regarding Act 4 amendments. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Kern 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS 
 

A. PENN’S VIEW LAND DEVELOPMENT – PRELIMINARY APPROVAL 
 

Mrs. deLeon said the applicant is proposing to subdivide approximately 19.11 acres into six lots 
utilizing on lot water and sewage facilities on a new cul-de-sac. 
 
Present – Brian Regan, principal and Attorney Joe Fitzpatrick.  Mrs. deLeon asked why there 
wasn’t any Boucher & James letter?  Ms. Stern Goldstein said the letter they prepared was a cle an 
letter dated February 1, 2007 and they had met all the proper conditions and issues that had been 
brought up.  Mr. Kocher, Engineer, said they are down to mainly legal items that the applicant has 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 6 of 21 

to address with Linc – maintenance agreement, improvements agreement and security, storm water 
maintenance notes and make sure they are okay.  They need a NPDES permit.  They need to 
provide the proper number of signed plans, pay the recreation fee and just add a note that the swale 
work we want done along the road is to the extent maximum, without disturbing the existing tree 
rows.  They are going to do some swale grading along the existing grade and they’ve agreed to do 
that, but HEA wants to make sure they don’t disturb the trees.  Attorney Fitzpatrick said he is okay 
with the letter they got from HEA.   

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval of the staff recommendation for Penn’s View Estates, Banko 

Lane, Tax Map Parcel Q8-7-16, final subdivision plan approval for February 21, 2007 – final 
plan approval.   

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

B. T-MOBILE VARIANCE – DISCUSISON REGARDING MERGING LOTS 
 

Mr. Kern said the applicant approached the landowner to discuss the consolidation of the vacant lot 
on which the monopole would be located with the adjacent lot and would like to discuss with 
Council as an alternative. 

 
Attorney Erich Schock said Mr. Milletich who was with him last time, but couldn’t be here this 
evening.  Mr. Milletich spoke with Mr. Young, and Attorney Schock spoke with Mr. Young again 
on Monday evening.  He had forwarded to Council a letter that Mr. Young had given him where he 
indicated he had no issue with respect to this never being able to be used as a separate lot.  His 
issue did remain with respect to the taxes.  He still prefers to have two tax parcels because he will 
get a separate tax bill which he can then hand over to T-Mobile and T-Mobile can pay.  Attorney 
Schock explained to him that typically we don’t have an issue even when we’re not on a separate 
lot because the tax person will work with us in creating a separate bill.  It’s not a guarantee and he’s 
been doing cell towers for eight years and he’s had a couple  of cases where issues had arisen with 
regard to taxes and they’ve been in disputes.  He can respect Mr. Young’s opinion, but he thought 
he could work with it.  The bottom line is he said to him, put some thought to it and the goal that 
Council had was simply that you would never henceforth be able to have this used as a separate 
building lot.  This does not necessarily mean that you must have a consolidation of the tax parcels 
for that to occur.  It can be simply done a couple of ways. He outlined one in his letter.  He spoke to 
Mr. Birdsall and Mr. Treadwell – he thinks they understood his position and said that at least his 
analysis, the way he was looking at this, did have some merit.  That is, they would be willing to put 
a restriction on both of the lots that they could never be separately conveyed and the smaller parcel 
would never be a separate building lot, and we could do that by recording a deed restriction.  They 
could do that by having the site plan with a note on it recorded.  There is some protection for the 
township, in that unlike other instances where you may say, how are we ever going to enforce this?  
In this instance, no one would ever be able to use that lot for a use without coming to the township 
for a permit first.  They would be foolish to put a house up there if they didn’t come to the 
township for a building permit.  It clearly could be reflected at that time that there is no ability to 
use this separately.  It’s pretty clear cut and he doesn’t see any risk to the Township and it achieves 
what the Township wants and satisfies his land owner.  While he understands your concern, just 
consolidate it, when you look at it, he doesn’t know with respect to what they want to do there, 
consolidation doesn’t necessarily need to be the precursor to us being able to do that as long as they 
said for zoning purposes, it now becomes one lot.  Beyond that, you have the issue of if you do go 
and do a consolidation, other issues come up with respect to that and are unrelated to the facility.  
For example, if we add the small lot to the larger lot, consolidate them, maybe now we’ve 
increased the nonconformity with regard to slopes.  We have another zoning issue unrelated to this 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 7 of 21 

that we now need to address where doing it this way saying it can never be anything but a lot used 
in connection with the home, never a separate building lot, we don’t have the issues that arise when 
you go to jam them into one.  He’s hoping that Council is agreeable and they can proceed. 

 
Mrs. deLeon asked if it would be a covenant and be running with the land?  Mr. Schock said yes.  
Mrs. deLeon said supposedly we have provisions that when they decided to not use the tower 
anymore, it would be dismantled.  Is there any reason for thought to say that when that happens 
they would consolidate the lot?  Attorney Schock said if it’s going to become vacant again.  
Attorney Treadwell said someone has to come back to this Council to make another use.  Attorney 
Schock said unlike something that could be maintained on there without your knowledge, he 
doesn’t see any way anyone could do anything there beyond the tower without the township having 
to know that it goes on.  You’d eliminate his one issue, but still have the second issue of he doesn’t 
know if it could be consolidated without zoning relief.  Attorney Treadwell asked Attorney Schock 
if they could put in the restriction that it’s one tower, not multiple towers.  Attorney Schock said 
yes and we’d have to allow another antenna at a lower height, but not two towers.  He said that 
wasn’t a problem.  Depending on what the board would require, they could design it for a second or 
third tower, but they couldn’t do four because he doesn’t even think you could do three.  You’d 
mostly get a 50’ and a 60’, because you still have to get over the trees.  Attorney Treadwell said 
anyone who would want to put a second antenna on would have to come back here again for 
conditional use.  Mrs. deLeon said they would, but they encourage co-location.  Attorney Schock 
said they will design it for as many as they feasibly can.  The only problem when you have 60’, you 
don’t have much leeway.    

 
Mr. Maxfield said can we get an agreement that the pole will not be extended in height?  Attorney 
Schock said yes, they will agree to that.  Mr. Maxfield said how many variances are we down to 
now that you will need with no merger?  Attorney Schock said they will need the impervious cover 
variance because they have 400 square feet and they are allowed 270 because of the slope.  Then 
they will need the setback variance because they cannot meet the height of the tower from the lines, 
but they did meet in excess of the height of the tower for many surrounding homes.   
 
Mrs. Yerger said he mentioned a deed restriction or a note on the plan.  Is there any benefit of 
doing both?  Attorney Schock said they would be willing to do that.  Council said they would be 
happier with that and appreciate that.  Mr. Maxfield said when Attorney Schock said setbacks from 
homes, you still may need a variance from setback from actual structures even though they are not 
homes.  Attorney Schock said they need a variance 127.1B for one and a half times the height from 
the lot line.  They need the yard requirements for the cabinets.  Again, they cannot meet that 
because the lot is not wide enough and they will now meet it on the interior one if they consider it 
merged for zoning purposes.  Maximum impervious cover we need, and we need the painted silver 
variance.   
 
Mr. Horiszny said he wished they would encourage them to use one of those fake trees as opposed 
to just a pole.  Mrs. Yerger said she doesn’t like them.  Mr. Kern said he’d like to look at the one 
Mr. Horiszny is talking about.  Attorney Schock said the only issue when you use a stealth 
monopole, what happens is the antennas on the tree are mounted in the interior and what that does 
is it inhibits the ability to get coverage from that.  He doesn’t know if at this location if you further 
inhibit the coverage, if it works, but he can certainly ask.  The difference is on a typical pole, we 
can mount outside and put the array around it so it kind of looks like a PPL pole, but instead of the 
electric  at the top, it has the panel antennas.  If you go to a tree, then you need to put the antennas 
inside and put the tree appurtenances on the fake tree.  What happens is your antennas are limited 
and restricted as to their angles because you’ve pushed them in as opposed to setting them out on a 
wider array and you’ve put a screen over top of them while there’s holes in that screen and they can 
get through, it does impact the ability for that because it’s still line of sight technology.  He will ask 
and see what response he gets.  Mr. Maxfield asked to check if the weight of the tree limbs affect 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 8 of 21 

the structural ability to put anything on it in the future.  Attorney Schock he’s never seen a co-
location on a tree.   You’d be stuck with one, but he could ask.  Mrs. Yerger asked if there was a 
platform?  Attorney Schock said there would be an array, where it just has the panels that come out 
and it’s four sided and they angle them to get the coverage.  Mrs. Yerger asked about the osprey on 
the towers.  Attorney Schock said for a time, there was a report that birds may fly into these, so 
there were big studies in the industry and they’ve addressed most of those kinds of issues.     

 
Mr. Maxfield asked for the recommendation to make the “tree appearance” if the applicant finds it 
is feasible to do.  Mrs. Yerger said we also have to make a recommendation for the deed restriction 
and marking it on the plan?  Attorney Treadwell said correct.  It’s going to the ZHB on March 19, 
2007, so you need to take a position or no position or a position with a recommendation.   Erich 
Schock and Attorney Treadwell can work out the details.  He would suggest no position subject to 
Attorney Schock and Attorney Treadwell working out the issues that were discussed tonight.  
Attorney Schock said he doesn’t know what to do about the tree yet?  Mr. Kern said you brought 
up some issues regarding the tree, that would impact our decision and we need to know the answers 
to those questions before we can say yes or no.  Mr. Maxfield said that’s why he’d like to make the 
recommendation that if the applicant thinks it’s feasible for what they want to do with the antenna, 
then we can go that route.  Mr. Horiszny said Jack is going to take pictures of the tree, we should 
see those first.  Attorney Schoch said if you get the pictures, he’ll get the answer to the questions 
and he can send a letter with it, you can look at the pictures and let him know.  Mr. Kern said they 
would need to know the feasibility of running the cables on the outside of it and the arrays and co-
location.  Mr. Horiszny said the tree is at Salisbury’s yard waste facility at the end of Black River 
Road and Honeysuckle.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved to take no position subject to Attorney Treadwell and Attorney Schock 

working out the conditions that were discussed tonight and subject to Attorney Schock coming 
back with pictures.   

SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

C. BRE – APPLEBUTTER ROAD – PERMIT MODIFICATION APPLICATION 
AGREEMENT 

 
Mr. Kern said an agreement has been drawn up outlining certain requirements associated with the 
construction and operation of an electric owner facility between Bethlehem Renewable Energy 
(BRE), IESI, and Lower Saucon Township. 
 
No one was present representing the applicant.  Mr. Cahalan said after the BRE facility was 
awarded the air and waste permits, by DEP, relating to their facility at the IESI landfill site which 
was for processing the landfill gas to generate electricity – the township consultants came back to 
Council and felt that the permits did not cover the issue of the closure and the post closure of the 
underground piping system that was used for the gas conveyance which was coming from the IESI 
landfill.  There was no consideration of those remaining after the landfill was closed.  Council had 
instructed the Landfill Solicitor to talk to BRE about this issue and Mr. Eliot did have some 
discussions with them and he reached the agreement that’s in front of you.  What this does say is 
within 60 days after BRE is no longer accepting landfill gas from the IESI landfill, BRE and IESI 
will cut and cap the landfill conveyance pipe.  They will remove ten feet of the pipe and the trench 
where the pipe section is removed will be backfilled.  That took care of that issue and it’s in front 
of you for approval to sign that agreement.   

 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 9 of 21 

Mrs. deLeon said as representative of the Landfill Committee, she did notice there was a blank in 
the agreement on the second paragraph.  That is an intentional blank, so our minutes should include 
that in case there is ever a question.  Where is says, a Delaware corporation, it reads “Delaware 
____________ corporation”, that blank is intentional, it’s not missing any information.  She called 
today to find out and was told if you put an “X” in there, the township would only have the signed 
copy and no one else would have copies and he didn’t recommend doing that.  She was told to just 
leave it be.   

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. Yerger moved to approve the agreement. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

D. GREENWOOD COURT – ALICE DRIVE – REQUEST EXTENSION TO COMPLETE 
IMPROVEMENTS 

 
Mr. Kern said the applicant is requesting a one-year extension to complete the improvements 
associated with this project.  No one was present representing Greenwood Court.  Mr. Kocher said  
there is really no reason for them to come.  The Improvements Agreement is about to expire, 
they’d like more time to finish the improvements and HEA is okay with that.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval to request extension to complete improvements. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

V. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. RESOLUTION 35-2007 – ADOPTING OPERATING PROCEDURES ASSOCIATED WITH 
THE EARTH DISTURBANCE ORDIANCE 

 
Mr. Kern said resolution 35-2007 has been prepared to adopt procedures to be followed in 
association with the Earth Disturbance ordinance and grading application. 

 
RESOLUTION #35-2007 

 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING OPERATING PROCEDURES FOR THE ADMINISTRATION 

OF ORDINANCE NO. 2007-01 EARTH DISTURBANCE ORDINANCE 
 

WHEREAS, the Council of Lower Saucon Township adopted Ordinance No. 2007-01 on January 
17, 2007 to regulate the modification of natural terrain and the alteration of drainage; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council of Lower Saucon Township wishes to adopt the following procedures to 
establish the number of document copies and time periods required to administer this ordinance.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Lower Saucon Township Council as follows: 
 
1. Applicants are required to submit an Erosion and Sedimentation Control and 

Grading Permit Application and three (3) copies of all required material (storm 
water management report, plans, and supporting documents) to the Township. 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 10 of 21 

2. Within five (5) days of receipt of these documents, the Township Zoning Officer 
reviews the application for administrative completeness. If the application is 
complete, the Township Zoning Officer forwards it to the Township Engineer for a 
review. 

3. If the application is incomplete, the Zoning Officer returns the documents to the 
applicant with a letter detailing the deficiencies. 

4. The Township Engineer performs a first review of the grading plan within three (3) 
weeks of receipt and forwards their review to the applicant’s design engineer and 
the Zoning Officer.  

5. If resubmissions are required, the applicant shall submit three (3) copies of all 
required documents directly to the Township Engineer. The Township Engineer 
will notify the applicant of the required resubmission fee (if required) and will 
complete the plan review. 

6. Upon approval of the plan, the Township Engineer will forward a letter of approval 
to the applicant and design engineer and provide a copy to the Zoning Officer. The 
approval letter will state any further requirements of the applicant including but not 
limited to: as-built survey, foundation location plan, required site inspections, etc.    

7. Fees shall be established and updated regularly by resolution and included in the 
current Township Fee Schedule. 

 
RESOLVED this 21st day of February, 2007. 

 
Mr. Cahalan said as Council directed, this is the resolution with the operating procedures ready for 
adoption. Mrs. deLeon said she thinks it is great and she appreciates having this done.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for adoption of Resolution 35-2007. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

B. ORDINANCE 2007-09 – ACT 40 AMENDMENT – AUTHORIZE ADVERTISEMENT 
 

Mr. Kern said ordinance 2007-09 has been prepared to ensure that our realty tax provisions are up-
to-date and uniform with the state law. 
 
Mr. Cahalan said several months ago, we received a notice from the Northampton County Recorder 
of Deeds. They notified the township that the state revenue department had requested that each 
municipality review their ordinances regarding the realty transfer tax and ensure they were up to 
date and uniform with the states realty transfer tax provisions which they had changed in 2006.  
They requested that we make any change in our ordinance that is necessary to create uniformity 
with the state realty transfer tax provision and they deal primarily with the interest that is charged 
with delinquent local realty transfer tax collections.  We have done that and it will be with the 
adoption and conformity with the state tax procedures.  Attorney Treadwell said he reviewed it and 
made some revisions and they are fine with it.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved for approval of ordinance 2007-09 to authorize advertisement for a public 

hearing. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 11 of 21 

C. REVIEW OF AGREEMENT TO LEASE OFFICE SPACE IN SEIDERSVILLE HALL 
 

Mr. Cahalan said several outside organizations are utilizing or have requested the use of office 
space in Seidersville Hall.  In order to be consistent with the rental of this space, we have prepared 
a lease agreement that would address any costs associated with renting space. 
 
Mr. Cahalan said Linc has looked at this.  It’s long, but there’s a lot of boiler plate items in here 
like a lease agreement would have.  The purpose of this is to get something in writing from the 
various organizations who would like to utilize office space.  There’s existing office space that’s 
being used and there’s additional space that they’ve created over there that can be used by local non 
profit agencies to help them continue to work on projects in the township.  He also put before you a 
document that was broken down and there’s a diagram of the Seidersville  Hall.  They broke down 
what the costs are to operate Seidersville Hall – heat, light, janitorial services, phone, and internet 
usage.  The sheet he gave Council has pink highlights on it.  Mrs. deLeon asked where the new 
space was that Mr. Cahalan was talking about?  Mr. Cahalan said if you look at the diagram, when 
you come in from the right hand side of the parking lot and you go all the way to the back down the 
hallway to the last door on the right which was being used as a quilt room by the seniors.  There 
was some space in there and they divided it off and there’s two small cubicles there now.  Mrs. 
deLeon said this is already done?  Mr. Cahalan said yes.   Mrs. deLeon said how come Council 
didn’t know about this work?  Doesn’t Council pre-approve something like that in a building before 
the township goes ahead and does it?  Mr. Cahalan said he didn’t bring it to Council.  He discussed 
it informally with several Council members.  Mrs. deLeon said decisions were made behind the 
scenes without bringing it to a council meeting?  Mr. Cahalan said he made the decision.  Mrs. 
deLeon said she doesn’t know if he’s authorized to make that decision.  Mr. Cahalan said he was 
acting on direction from some time ago when Council indicated that he should maximize the use of 
the space in Seidersville Hall.  Mrs. deLeon said that doesn’t mean that you just have carte blanche 
to go out and do just whatever you want in a building.  Usually there’s a plan, it’s brought before 
Council, and it’s implemented and approved.  Isn’t that the way Government is supposed to be 
working?  She asked what happened to the big table in that room?  Mr. Cahalan said the table is in 
the multi-purpose room.  Mrs. deLeon said she would hope that in the future that any changes made 
to a township building be pre-approved by Council, and she’d like that in the record.   

 
Mr. Kern said it brings up an interesting point to whether or not this qualifies as day-to-day 
operations or not?  Mrs. deLeon said that’s a policy decision - if you read the administrative code, 
any policy decisions for a change in a building.  She would be offended if the Manager would make 
decisions like this without coming to Council.  In fact, she is offended.  Mr. Maxfield said why is 
that a policy decision?  Mrs. deLeon said he’s changing the use of a building.  Mr. Kern said he’s 
not changing the use, it’s two cubicles.  Mrs. deLeon said there was an expenditure made.  Mr. 
Cahalan said there was minimal expenditure.  Mrs. deLeon said yes, it’s under $800 and the 
Manager has the right to spend $800.  She’s telling you as one Council person, she would like to be 
consulted the next time something like this is done.  Mr. Kern said duly noted. 

 
Mr. Maxfield said he appreciated Mr. Cahalan’s efforts to maximize the usage of the building.  
Under Article  1, it talks about everybody’s ability to use the multi purpose room under prior 
arrangement with landowner, which would be the Manager – if there are two functions that had to 
be scheduled, would the occupant be able to utilize Town Hall?  Mr. Cahalan said yes, they work 
around to try and accommodate everyone.   

 
Mrs. Yerger said the groups that are going to be using these two new rooms are township 
organizations.  Mr. Cahalan said he hasn’t come back and said to Council who the groups  are yet.  
He will do that after they do the lease agreement and talk about the cost as he has to talk to those 
organizations.  Attorney Treadwell said his question for you tonight is the standard form lease.  
Then we will bring it back every time there’s a new group that wants to use it and we’ll have to 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 12 of 21 

come up with a number at that point as to how many square feet they are using and what the price 
is.  Mrs. Yerger said she phrased her questions incorrectly.  The intent was to provide additional 
space for community organizations to utilize the building.  Mr. Cahalan said that’s what the whole 
purpose is for.  Mrs. deLeon said when we had vacated the Seidersville Hall, she had encouraged 
using it as a senior center and encouraged opening it up to the public.  Just so someone gets the 
wrong impression that she’s against having that building used, she is not.  She just wants to make 
sure all the procedures and polices are followed in the township.   Mr. Maxfield said this will apply 
to the groups that are using the building now?  Mr. Cahalan said the Historical Society is occupying 
space and it’s indicated in there and the highlighted areas are the space that they occupy.  He’s 
recommending for consideration that there be a nominal fee of approximately $25.00 a month 
charged to any non profit organization that enters into the lease agreement to occupy this office 
space.  Mrs. deLeon asked if it will pertain to the Historical Society?  Mr. Cahalan said yes, it will.  
Mrs. deLeon said they have to pay for the building for the schoolhouse and pay $25 a month?  Mr. 
Cahalan said yes, and that’s for Council’s consideration.  He’s just trying to come up with a 
recommendation.  That’s for all the costs.  Mrs. deLeon asked why this wasn’t included in our 
packet?  Mr. Cahalan said he couldn’t get it done on time.  Mrs. deLeon asked if it could be held 
off until the next meeting?  Attorney Treadwell said we don’t need to take action on it tonight. 

 
Ms. Lorraine Torella from the Historical Society was present.  Mr. Maxfield asked her if $25 
sounded reasonable.  She said they would agree to the $25.00 as everything was included in that.  
Mr. Kern said take a couple of weeks and talk to the members of the Society and come back.  Mr. 
Cahalan said the township is subsidizing the senior center and paying the SV Community Center 
and it includes the use of that building, so they wouldn’t be charged and neither would the 
Emergency Management.  The multi purpose room is used by everybody, so we treat that like 
Town Hall.   
 
Mrs. deLeon asked if the lease had to be this involved?  It’s a lot of words and should be easier 
than that.  Attorney Treadwell said we go back to what we talked about at the last meeting – how 
much should we cover and how much shouldn’t we cover?  We tried to cover as much as much as 
we could this time.  It doesn’t have to be this involved.  Mrs. deLeon said this is ridiculous and too 
involved.  Will it apply to the Blair House?  Attorney Treadwell said this would be the standard 
lease we would use for any township property.  If Council tells me it’s way too involved, then we’ll 
bring it back to Council.  Mr. Maxfield said he read it and didn’t have a problem with it.  He 
thought it was legal language and most of the articles in it are pretty standard things.  It does 
address things we had talked about as a Council before like subletting, etc.  If you read the article 
titles, i.e., insurance, damage, alterations, maintenance, it’s all pretty standard stuff.  Mrs. Yerger 
said if Attorney Treadwell says this is a standard type of document, she has no problem with it and 
is willing to go by that.  Attorney Treadwell said it’s a standard document and comprehensive.  
You have to read it.  Mrs. Yerger said she doesn’t have a problem with it.  Mr. Maxfield  said he’d 
rather be covered.  Attorney Treadwell said we’ll put it back on the agenda.  Mr. Maxfield said 
right now it says leased office space Seidersville Hall, do we want to apply this to all township 
buildings?  Council said yes.  Attorney Treadwell said they will bring it back and change it. 

 
Ms. Stephanie Brown asked if the building was historic, a one room schoolhouse?  Mrs. Yerger 
said it was never a one room schoolhouse.  It was always a multi room schoolhouse. There’s been 
significant alteration in there when it was used as a town hall.  It’s certainly a significant part of the 
township.  There is no historical standing and no one ever attempted to put it through the formal 
process.  Ms. Brown asked if those were permanent changes?  Mr. Cahalan said he put up a room 
divider.  It’s not permanent.  It can be easily removed, Mrs. Yerger said, and could come out 
without any problem.   

 
This will be tabled until a future meeting. 

 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 13 of 21 

D. RESOLUTION 36-2007 – AMENDING FEE SCHEDULE 
 

Mr. Kern said resolution 36-2007 has been prepared to amend the fee schedule to include the fee to 
purchase the new Storm Water Ordinance.  Staff is recommending the fee be set at $15. 

 
Resolution #36-2007 

 
ZONING, SUBDIVISION, AND LAND DEVELOPMENT 

FEE SCHEDULE RESOLUTION 
 

WHEREAS, the Lower Saucon Township Zoning Ordinance #88-2, as amended, and Subdivision 
and Land Development Ordinance #92-1, as amended provide for certain fees that are to be paid to 
the Township General Fund for reviewing applications and processing plans and applications; and 
 
WHEREAS, these fees are to be established to provide for general reimbursement to the Township 
General Fund for administrative costs associated with processing the applications and plans, 
distributing the applications and plans to various review agencies, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township of Lower Saucon is desirous of establishing a uniform Fee Schedule 
for such applications so that the general administration costs associated with processing each 
application does not have to be calculated on a case-by-case basis, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved and it is hereby resolved as follows: 
 
1. All “whereas” clauses are incorporated herein by reference, 
 
2. The Lower Saucon Township Council hereby repeals fees in Resolution #22-2000, #17-
2002, #19-2003, #23-2004, #22-2005, #22.1-2005, #31-2005, #49-2005, #22-2006, #45-2006, #22-
2007, and #31-2007 and Schedule for Submission Fees for Zoning, Subdivision and Land 
Development Applications and other schedules and sets forth fees as follows, amended by 
motion of a majority of Council at a duly advertised meeting from time to time: 

 
FEE SCHEDULE 

 
1. Zoning Permit Fee Schedule    

 A
. 

All Permits Requiring Uniform Construction Code Approval $4 

 B
. 

Residential   

  1. New Residential  $200 
  2. Additions  $100 
  3. Interior & Exterior Alterations  $25 
 C

. 
Commercial/Industrial with Change in Use  $500 

  (new construction, additions, alterations, changes in occupancy)  
 D

. 
Commercial/Industrial with no Change in Use  $250 

  (new construction, additions, alterations, changes in occupancy)  
 E

. 
Signs   

  1. Up to 50 s.f.  $50 
  2. Greater than 50 s.f. $50 + $1/s.f. over 50 s.f. 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 14 of 21 

 F
. 

Accessory and Miscellaneous Uses   

  1. Decks under 250 s.f.  $20 
  2. Sheds under 250 s.f.   $20 
  3. Fences and other miscellaneous structures  $20 
  4. Tree removal (excluding Forestry)  $20 
  5. Decks over 250 s.f.  $50 
  6. Sheds/accessory buildings over 250 s.f. requiring a foundation $50 
  7. Swimming Pools $50 
  8. Demolition  $25 
 G

. 
Road Encroachment Permit  $50 

 H
. 

Moving Permit  $5 

 I. Occupancy Permit (not associated with an accessory uses building permit) $5 
 J

. 
Temporary Occupancy Permit $75 

 K
. 

Home Business and Accessory Uses Permits  $5 

 L
. 

Sanitation (Septic) Permit   

  1. Percolation Testing Performed by Township  $315 
  2. Percolation Testing Witnessed by Township  $175 
  3. Application Fee (non-carbonate area)  $160 
  4. Application Fee (carbonate area)  $280 
  5. Final Inspection (sand mound system)  $175 
  6. Final Inspection (in ground system)  $100 
  7. Repairs  $125 
 M

. 
Road Weight Limit Permit  $50 

 N
. 

Grading & SESC Permit (includes review of one re-submission) $300 

  1. Additional Resubmission Fee $60 
  2. Carbonate Geology Review $60 
 O

. 
Storm water Management Applications   

  1. Application Fee $50 
  2. Escrow $500 
     
2. Temporary Zoning Permits   

 A
. 

Portable Signs for Temporary Use  $50 

 B
. 

Temporary Structure Permit (sales trailer, etc.)  $50 

     
3. Miscellaneous    

 A
. 

Zoning Ordinance with map  $20 

 B
. 

Zoning Map  $5 

 C
. 

Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance  $15 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 15 of 21 

 D
. 

Comprehensive Plan  $25 

 E
. 

Natural Resource Inventory  $20 

 F
. 

Storm water Ordinance  $15 

 G
. 

Copies  $.25 

 H
. 

Returned Check  $50 

 I. Pavilion Rental (Town Hall Park)   
  1. Resident  $100 
  2. Non-Resident  $150 
  3. Deposit  $50 
 J

. 
Ballfield Rental Fee (Required for leagues requesting usage at one night/week)  

  1. Resident  $175 
  2. Non-Resident  $200 
 K

. 
Rental of Seidersville Hall (certificate of insurance and $50 deposit required)  

  1. Resident  $25/2 hrs. 
     $35/4 hrs. 
     $65/5+ hrs. 
  2. Non-Resident  $35/2 hrs. 
     $45/4 hrs. 
     $75/5+ hrs. 
     
4. Licenses   

 A
. 

Junkyard License  $250 

5. Finance Charges   

 A
. 

Tax Collection Services   $20 

 B
. 

Duplicate Tax Bill  $10 

  Application Escrow 
6. Subdivision/Land Development   

 A
. 

Site Plan or Formal Sketch $75 $1,500 

 B
. 

Site Plan for Landfill/Quarries  $75 $5,000 

 C
. 

Lot Line Changes $75 $1,500 

 D
. 

Minor Subdivisions $100 $1,500 

 E
. 

Major Subdivisions   

  1. Preliminary $400 + $5/lot $3,000 + $50/lot 
  2. Final $100  
 F

. 
Land Development   



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 16 of 21 

  1. Preliminary 
    

$400 + 
$50/1,000 

s.f. of 
building area 

$3,000 + 
$50/1,000 s.f. of 

building area 
 

  2. Final Escrow 
    

$400 + 
$50/1,000 

s.f. of  
building area 

 

brought up to 
original deposit 

 G
. 

Revised Submissions ½ of Filing 
Fee 

Replenish 

 H
. 

Act 537 Planning Module Review   

  1. 1 or 2 lots $100 $500 
  2. 3 to 6 lots $250 $500 
  3. 7 or more $500 $500 

7. Application for Hearing (ZHB, Council, or Bldg. Code Board of Appeals)  

 A
. 

Residential $50 $300 

 B
. 

Multi-Family $200 $1,000 

 C
. 

Institutional/Recreational $200 $1,000 

 D
. 

Commercial $200 $1,000 

 E
. 

Shopping Center $200 $1,000 

 F
. 

Industrial $200 $1,000 

 G
. 

Challenge to Validity of Zoning Ordinance $3,000 $500 

 H
. 

Conditional Use $1,500 $500 

 I. Curative Amendment $3,000 $500 
 J

. 
Application for Rezoning $1,500 $500 

 K
. 

Miscellaneous (Involving requests to Council requiring the 
Township Attorney or Engineer to review or render a decision or 
opinion) 

$50 $500 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution has been duly enacted this 21st day of February, 2007 
 
Mr. Cahalan said they created a stand alone ordinance so they have a separate document to hand 
out and they are recommending the cost for that be $15.00. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved for approval of Resolution 36-2007. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 17 of 21 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 7, 2007 MINUTES 
 

Mr. Kern said the minutes of February 7, 2007 have been prepared and are ready for Council’s 
review and approval. 
 
Mr. Horiszny said Page 8, about line 7, there should be a motion to open the hearing by Ron 
Horiszny, seconded by Sandy Yerger, roll call with 5-0.  Page 20, line 8, “Dravite” should be 
“Dravitz”.  Page 24, line 47, two dashes in “2- -5” and it should be “2005”.  Page 42,  line 37, we 
did a lot of discussing and he thought Sandy made the motion that Linc was to write the letter and it 
indicates Mr. Horiszny made a motion for him to contact them.  It was seconded by Mr. Horiszny.  
Page 43, line 27, he doesn’t think that’s what the motion was, was it to have the staff contact Dave 
from Heritage Conservancy?  Mr. Kern said yes, it was.  Mr. Maxfield said put in Dave’s last 
name, “Kimmerly”.  Attorney Treadwell said let’s make sure that was actually in the motion.  Mrs. 
deLeon said put it in parenthesis.  Attorney Treadwell said we could.   Mr. Kern said he doesn’t 
think he said his last name as he couldn’t remember his last name when he was making the motion.  
Mr. Horiszny said he indicated a motion about the National Historic Register for Karen Samuels 
work and he doesn’t see that in there.  Mrs. deLeon said that was under the bridge.  Karen’s 
working on the bridge and we had an agenda item on the bridge.  Mrs. Yerger said page 32, line 8, 
“Keller” Museum should be “Kemmerer” Museum. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved for approval of February 7, 2007 minutes, with corrections. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-1 (Mr. Horiszny – No) 
 

B. APPROVAL OF JANUARY 2007 FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 

Mr. Kern said the January 2007 Financial reports have been prepared and are read for Council’s 
review and approval. 
 
Mr. Horiszny asked what Check Register No. 381, $28.00 for Sure Shine Car Wash?  Mr. Cahalan 
said that’s for the police cruisers.  They all go there.  Mr. Horiszny said No. 126 was $650.00 for 
Witts Tree Service?  Mr. Cahalan said Public Works used that for large trees that we can’t take 
down with our own equipment.  It has a crane that goes in and lifts it off so things don’t fall on 
other property   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of the January 2007 financial reports. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
No one raised their hand. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 18 of 21 

VIII. COUNCIL AND STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER 
 

Ø Mr. Cahalan said he’d like to recommend the appointment of Dr. Glenn Kaye to the EAC 
as Mr. Paul Pagoda resigned recently.  Dr. Kaye lives on Easton Road and he has a medical 
practice in Bethlehem Township and has an interest in the EAC.  It would be a one year 
term that ends December 31, 2007. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the Manager’s recommendation of appointment Glenn 

Kaye to the EAC. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

Ø Mr. Cahalan said there was a snow event last Wednesday, February 14, 2007.  Because of 
the extended plowing they had to do, it was necessary for him to declare a snow emergency 
effective 8:00 AM that morning, February 14 and that lasted until 9:00 AM the next 
morning, February 15, 2007.  Per the resolution that was adopted in 2004, that action must 
be ratified by Council at the next Council meeting.  He’d ask for Council’s approval of the 
snow emergency that was declared by the Manager on February 14 and 15. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to approve the snow emergency as stated by the Manager above. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

Mrs. deLeon said she’s gotten several complaints from residents throughout the township 
about their mailboxes.  Apparently, and this is hearsay, our trucks were traveling just a bit too 
fast and because of the heaviness of the snow, mailboxes were knocked over.   They really 
didn’t hit them, but the power of the snow knocked them over.  She asked Mr. Cahalan to look 
into it.  Mr. Cahalan said there were several reports about some of these mailboxes, because of 
the weight of the snow.  What they do is investigate each report on the mailbox that’s been 
damaged and inform the resident that if they can show that the township equipment struck the 
mailbox, they will report it to the insurance company.  If the mailbox was knocked down 
because of the force of the snow coming off the plow, the township indicates that they do not 
take any responsibility for that.  He will talk to Roger Rasich about the speed.  Mrs. deLeon 
said she doesn’t agree with that.  Just because the township didn’t physically hit the mailbox, it 
still was knocked over.  Mr. Cahalan said that’s a position that most municipalities take.  Mr. 
Kern said the nature of this particular snow, which was ice, some mailboxes will get hit.  Mr. 
Cahalan said there were under 10 mailboxes reportedly damaged.  Mr. Maxfield said to please 
send his personal thanks to the road crew as out their way on the eastern part of the township, 
they were almost there a full day ahead of PennDOT.  Township roads were cleaned and 
PennDOT roads were a mess.  Our guys did a much better job than PennDOT.  Attorney 
Treadwell said we can just look into it and check out the individual complaints.  Mrs. deLeon 
said speaking of the snow storm, she’d like to direct the Manager to write up a resolution for 
the next Council meeting thanking the Emergency Responders of the Township who helped the 
stranded motorists on I-78.  She saw the 69 news and saw Chris Snyder from Steel City who 
was out there helping.  Lee Walters is here, and he also helped and there were other 
departments that responded and helped.  She’d like a resolution thanking them.  Mr. Maxfield 
thought that was a great idea. 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 19 of 21 

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for a resolution to be brought to the next meeting thanking the volunteers 

who helped the stranded motorists on I78 in the snow storm. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

Ø Mr. Cahalan said one of the things that the SV Partnership had been pushing for under 
cooperative purchasing initiatives was to look at bidding out the grass mowing at the 
Borough and Township parks.  The purpose was to see what kind of prices they would get 
from bidders and to see whether it would be advantageous to go into a combined bidding of 
these grass mowing services.  They put together a package and it’s being reviewed by the 
Solicitor, ads are going out and they will report back about the findings.  It is done so that 
if we still are under agreement with the contractor on Polk Valley Park, if we get a bid 
price back, Hellertown will be able to go independently if it’s attractive to them.   Mrs. 
deLeon asked what it will do to the non uniform employees, and she knows they are 
covered by our union contract, what happens in that respect?  Mr. Cahalan said we have the 
ability to contract it out.  

Ø Mr. Cahalan had informed Council – the police consolidation study that had been started 
last year between the township and LST had been halted.  Now it’s going to be resumed by 
the Government Center at DCED.  They got word from DCED that they are going to assign 
us a new peer consultant, who is usually a police chief in the state , to work with the 
Township and the Borough in putting together the study.  They’ve already given them 
material from both police departments and the rest of the study will involve coming and 
making observations and meeting individually with Council members and so on.  There’s a 
kickoff meeting to meet the peer consultant on March 14, 2007.  He’s recommending that 
Glenn Kern and Priscilla deLeon attend as Council representatives to the kickoff meeting 
in Hellertown at 4:00 PM.  

 
B. TOWNSHIP COUNCIL/JR. COUNCIL MEMBER 
 

Mrs. Yerger 
Ø There is a Southeastern Pennsylvania Regional Conference for EAC’s.  There are a couple 

of new members that would like to go as they’ve never been to one before.  There is a fee 
for it, so she assumes she needs permission for them to go to the conference.  She thinks 
there are two people. 

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. Yerger moved for the township pay for the new EAC members and old EAC members so 

they can attend the Southeastern PA Regional EAC Conference on March 10, 2007. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Kern 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

Ø She talked to one of the young ladies from the newly formed Upper Saucon EAC and she 
provided Mrs. Yerger with contact information and she will contact them and be looking at 
doing some more joint things.  She did mention as an established EAC, they can do a little 
bit of mentoring for them. 

 
Mr. Maxfield 
Ø He recalls that a few meetings ago, he had asked staff to look into Meadow’s Road issue 

about reducing speed limits and putting stop signs at either side of the bridge.  When he 



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 20 of 21 

talked to Ted Beardsley, he was of the opinion that would not help the issue as most people 
would obey the yield signs now, but he did want to know if there was any movement on an 
interim solution of a no left hand turn?  Mr. Kocher said they looked at all of that.  They 
don’t think they can change the speed limit.   They might be able to put a stop sign on the 
side of the bridge heading towards 412.  The traffic study is done on the no left hand turn 
and also on the no truck approach sign.  It’s been sent to PennDOT.  We still need 
PennDOT’s approval. 

Ø At the recent watershed meeting, County Conservation attended the meeting and is very 
involved in the watershed group.  One of their interns has done a very tough and long job 
of charting, via GIS, uncharted streams.  She has agreed to share that information with 
Chris Garges.  If we can get that information, we can capitalize on her work and send her 
an official thank you once we get the information.  Her first name is Erin.  That is a wealth 
of information ad we should be happy to get it. 

 
Mr. Kern 
Ø Nothing to report 
 
Mrs. deLeon 
Ø She checked into covering the arch and she has several phone calls in and is still waiting to 

hear what their recommendations are.  She’ll report back when she hears from them. 
Ø On March 31, 2007, snow date being May 5, the Girls Go Green, are going to help at the 

Conservancy with putting in some flower beds.  She will submit a drawing to Jack Cahalan 
showing where they will be going.  Jack said the township will provide mulch. 

 
Mr. Horiszny 
Ø Gar Davidson is at the Hellertown Borough Authority Meeting tonight to try to get 

directions or comments on Act 537 planning and he will attend a seminar on March 1, 2007 
regarding valley wide water and sewer service which would eliminate all other authorities 
and just have one.  Mr. Cahalan said they intend to put it on the agenda to give an update 
on the status of the Act 537.  Mrs. deLeon asked if Gar was attending the meeting just as an 
FYI?  Mr. Horiszny said to keep track of what they are doing.  The Group is called “Renew 
Lehigh Valley”. 

 
Jr. Council Member 
Ø She said the recycling program is doing well.  The contest is going on.  The Middle School 

is winning.  The contest will continue until March 31, 2007.  The community is encouraged 
to continue using the bins after that date.  There will be a bin placed at the Dewey Fire 
House.  So far, the Elementary has 1.94 tons, the Middle School has 2.6 tons, the High 
School has 2.1 tons, and the Administrative office has 1.22 tons and the Lower Saucon 
Township has 2.29 tons.   

Ø The shot clinic for the animals went very well.  They made a little bit over $1,400.  They 
were able to exam, vaccinate, and license forty-one animals.  Some animals were also 
micro chipped.  

Ø There are still Footloose tickets on sale.  They are $10 for adults and $8 for students.  They 
are being sold at Pondelek’s.  The Girls Go Green program planning is complete and the 
individual troops will be receiving their work areas throughout Hellertown and LST tonight 
at the Girl Scout service unit meeting. The troops will be responsible for transporting the 
girls and they will be bringing them lunches.  The Girl Scout Council will be providing 
snacks for the girls.  Questions, please contact Margie Segaline. 

Ø Last night she received the Soroptomist award.  It’s an award awarded to young women for 
volunteering in their community.  She got the award by sending in an essay about the 
animal food bank along with the articles that have been writing about the animal food bank.  
She received a plaque and $500.  



General Business Meeting  
February 21, 2007 
 

Page 21 of 21 

  
C. SOLICITOR 

Nothing to report 
 

D. ENGINEER 
Ø Mr. Horiszny asked if Mr. Kocher had any comments about the height restriction for the 

bridge where they put an arch over it to stop big trucks from going over automatically.  Mr. 
Cahalan said he notified Map Quest about their lack of any indication of weight restrictive 
bridges.  He hasn’t gotten a response on that.  Mr. Kern asked anything about the bar by 
the bridge to stop big trucks?  Mr. Kocher said they thought it was a good idea.  Mr. 
Horiszny said could we do that?  Mr. Kocher said he’ll look into it.  Mr. Kern said the only 
concerned expressed  by several council member was what happens when a truck turns in 
and sees it, knows they can’t continue, then what do they do.  Is there a way to turn around 
safely?   

 
E. PLANNER 

Nothing to report. 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved to adjourn.  The time was 8:46 PM. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
___________________________________   __________________________________ 
Mr. Jack Cahalan      Glenn Kern     
Township Manager      President of Council 


